
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
July 3, 2014, Regular Meeting  


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the June 5, 2014 Regular Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be attached 
as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that item during the Board 
meeting 


 







 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE 
 
A. Discussion/Action re Resolution 14-13, Stage 1 Water Shortage Declaration (Est. 


time: 20 min.) 
 
B. Discussion/Action re USDA Bond Re-Funding (Est. time 10 min) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re the Availability for Sale of the Property at 17071 Hwy 116 


Adjacent to the District Office (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re the Change of Monte Rio Treatment Plant Chlorination 


System to a TriChlor Feeder (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re Review of Fiscal Year 2013-14 (Est. time 15 min.)   
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS (Est. time 
5 min.) 


 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 30 min.) 
 


 A. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 
54956.7 


  Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and Russian River Recreation and Park District 
 
 B. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7 
  Property: 14335 Woods Avenue, Guerneville 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 


Negotiating parties: SSWD and Stacy Jardine 
 
 


IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 


 


ADJOURN 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
June 5, 2014 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Tim Lipinski 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Victoria Wikle 
 Rich Holmer 
   
Board Members Absent: None 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     David Warner, Meyers Nave et al. 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Rich Holmer at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 
p.m.) 


 
(None.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:31 p.m.) 
 
Director Holmer reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Wikle moved to approve 
the Consent Calendar as submitted.  Director Robb-Wilder seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.  The 
following items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the May 1, 2014 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence, if any.   
 


1. Letter dated May 2, 2014 from the Monte Rio Chamber of Commerce re 
Monte Rio Gateway Water Service 


 
 


 1







IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:32 p.m.) 
 
(None.) 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:32 p.m.) 
 
A. (6:32 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Adoption of Resolution 14-11, Authorizing the 


General Manager to Accept the Fiscal Year 2014 Capital Improvement Project and 
to Sign and Record a Notice of Completion.  The GM provided an overview of this 
item.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to adopt Resolution 14-11, Authorizing the General 
Manager to Accept the Fiscal Year 2014 Capital Improvement Project and to Sign and 
Record a Notice of Completion.  Director Wikle seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.  


 
B. (6:42 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Adoption of Resolution 14-12, Approving the 


Construction Project Budget and Awarding the Contract for the FY 2015 Capital 
Improvement Project to Piazza Construction in the sum of $821,891.50 and 
Authorizing the General Manager Total Change Order Approval of $98,626, County 
of Sonoma Permit Fees of $12,179, CalTrans Permit Fees of $1,500 and Single 
Change Order Approval up to $25,000.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  
Discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to approve Resolution 14-12, 
Approving the Construction Project Budget and Awarding the Contract for the FY 2015 
Capital Improvement Project to Piazza Construction in the sum of $821,891.50 and 
Authorizing the General Manager Total Change Order Approval of $98,626, County of 
Sonoma Permit Fees of $12,179, CalTrans Permit Fees of $1,500 and Single Change 
Order Approval up to $25,000.  Director Schaap seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.   


 
C. (7:07 p.m.) Discussion/Action re PERS Unfunded Liability.  The GM provided an 


overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No action was taken.   
 
D. (7:21 p.m.) Discussion/Action re USDA Bond Re-Funding.  The GM provided an 


overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No action was taken.  
 
E. (7:25 p.m.) Discussion/Action re the Availability for Sale of the Property at 17071 


Hwy. 116 Adjacent to the District Office.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  
Board discussion ensued.  No action was taken but this item was slated for further 
discussion at the July Board meeting.   


 
F. (7:36 p.m.) Discussion/Action re the Change of the Monte Rio Treatment Plant 


Chlorination System to a TriChlor Feeder.  The GM provided an overview of this item .  
Board discussion ensued.  Direction was given to staff to research the TriChlor Feeder 
further.   


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:12 p.m.) 
 
The General Manager reported on the following items: 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water Production and Sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Guerneville Rainfall (Drought) 
5. 2014 CIP / 2015 CIP 
6. Toilet Rebate / Direct Install Program 
7. In-House Construction Projects 
8. Russian River County Sanitary District Spill 
9. Gantt Chart 
 
 


 2







 3


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(8:24 p.m.) 


 
(None.) 
 
 
** At 8:24 p.m. the Board recessed briefly.  The meeting reconvened at 8:30 p.m. 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:30 p.m.) 
 
At 8:30 p.m. President Holmer announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  At 8:32 
p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 8:53 p.m. the meeting reconvened and the following 
actions on Closed Session items were announced: 
 


A. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 
54956.7 


 Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville 
 Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
 Negotiating parties: SSWD and Russian River Park and Recreation District  


  No action was taken. 
 


B. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 
54956.7 


  Property: 14335 Woods Avenue, Guerneville 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and Stacy Jardine 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:54 p.m.) 
 
1. Trichlor Feeder System 
2. USDA Bond Re-Funding 
2. Sale of Adjacent Property (17071 Hwy. 116) 
3. River Lane property 
 
 


ADJOURN 
The meeting adjourned at 8:57 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:31 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:32 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:32 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:12 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(8:24 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:30 p.m.)

		A. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54956.7

		Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville

		Agency negotiator: Steve Mack

		Negotiating parties: SSWD and Russian River Park and Recreation District 





		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:54 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: July 3, 2014 
  
SUBJECT: DECLARATION OF STAGE I WATER SHORTAGE 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation on the possibility of declaring a Stage I 
Drought following the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan.  Consider declaring a 
Stage I Drought condition or not invoke Stage I but ask for a voluntary 20% reduction 
by our customers.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  A 20% reduction in water sales would have approximately a $140,000 
reduction in District revenues if done for an entire year.  There would be additional, 
relatively small District expenses associated with the water conservation effort. 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
The State of California is in the midst of a statewide drought.  The severity of the 
drought varies throughout the State, but it is unusual and a problem in that the 
water shortages are generally statewide.   The Governor of the State, Jerry Brown, 
at some point stated that he wanted a 20% water use reduction.  The State Water 
Resources Control Board is supposed to be directing that effort.  It seems 
appropriate that the District invoke its Water Shortage Contingency Plan or some 
measure of making water use reduction official District policy in response to the 
Statewide direction.   


The District last declared Stage I of the Water Shortage Contingency Plan in 2009 in 
response to the Temporary Urgency Change to Decision 1610 mandated flows.  In 
that year it was strictly a Russian River event and there was specific language in the 
relevant Board order directing a regional effort (although not specifically Sweetwater 
Springs involvement). River flows (and rainfall) are similar this year and a similar 
effort is appropriate.   


A reduction in the amount of 20% will be a big achievement. The District should be 
setting an example for others in this effort.  And we must remember that water that 
is not diverted is water that stays in the river – that to me is the theme this year.   


However, the direction from the State is not clear.  The reduction goals are not clear 
– other than 20%.  We don’t know for how long the plan should be put in place, for 
example.  Apparently, the State Water Resources Control Board will provide some 
direction in mid July.  We have heard a rumor that the State will place some 
mandatory restrictions on outside watering – I believe that is a police power that the 
District does not have.   







Declaration of Stage I Drought  2  
July 3, 2014 


The regional effort is not clear either.  Contractors of the Sonoma County Water 
Agency have not made formal drought declarations in their communities.  They have 
called for voluntary 20% reductions.   


The District’s 2010 Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP), Appendix A. describes 
the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan (Plan).   The Plan lists three stages of 
water shortage – I, II, and III.  Table A-2, excerpted from the UWMP and shown 
below, shows that reductions in the 15%-25% call for a Stage I declaration by the 
Board.  The UWMP is sparse on the details of what a Stage I Water Shortage 
Conservation Plan would include, only stating that the conservation would be 
voluntary.  Exhibit A to Resolution 14-13 contains the proposed elements of the 
Stage I Water Shortage Conservation Plan.  This plan is based on staff experience of 
working in the conservation field and discussions with SCWA staff of what is 
available for regional programs.  Because of the decentralized nature of this 
conservation effort, possible changes in direction from the State, and the current 
lack of an overall regional coordination of regional water conservation, the Plan must 
be considered subject to change.  As we find better ways to achieve results, we 
would implement those better ways. 


 
Table A-2 


Emergency Response Stages and Reduction Goals 


Shortage Condition Stage Customer Reduction 
Goal 


Type of Rationing 
Program 


15 – 25% I 25% Voluntary 
26 – 35% II 35% Mandatory 
36 – 50% III 50% or > Mandatory 


 


What does a 20% reduction in production look like?  How does this compare with 
2009?  Figure 1 compares production for 2013 with the 3-year period of 2011-2013 
that we believe the State Board is using for comparison purposes and with what we 
did in 2009 and 2004, which was the base year for comparison purposes back then.   


 


Figure 1.  April through September Monthly Production 
Sweetwater Springs Water District


0


20


40


60


80


100


120


April May June July August September


M
o
n
th


ly
 P


ro
d
u
ct


io
n
 (
A


F
)


2004


2009


2013


2011-2013 Avg


80%2011-13


 
Some Observations: 







Declaration of Stage I Drought  3  
July 3, 2014 


 As I write this report I am uncertain about details about what the State wants 
us to do.  When does the conservation effort end?  When it starts raining 
somewhere?  Is it just a summer thing as it was back in 2009?   


 Revenue impact is estimated to be $140,000 if done for an entire budget year.   


 The District has no police power to enforce restrictions.  The proposed water 
conservation plan, whether for Stage I or requesting 20% reduction, is 
voluntary.  Any plan that had mandatory restrictions would be difficult to 
enforce.  The District’s only punitive tool available is turning off service.  We 
cannot fine anyone for not abiding by water use restrictions.  One approach to 
get police power would be to have Sonoma County enact water use restriction 
ordinances and delegate the enforcement authority to the District.  That would 
be a time-consuming process, if even feasible, and is not available for this 
summer. (nor is it necessary) 


 To me, this is an effort to get in step with the State and to make our message 
internally consistent.  We have been asking for our customers to voluntarily 
reduce water use for some time, keeping in step with the Sonoma County 
Water Agency’s (and others) program entitled “Turn the Water Off” – doing 
either approach will make it official policy of the District. 


The conservation effort is not being done perfectly, and much can be done to 
improve regional cooperation.  However, the District needs to be a participant in the 
conservation effort.  Exhibit A shows a reasonable plan that can be presented to 
District customers to get the effort moving regardless of formal invocation of Stage 
I.  Invocation of Stage I Water Shortage makes it more of statement and is following 
the UWMP.  Either action will make water use reduction during the drought official 
District policy.  







Resolution 14-13 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


DECLARING A STAGE I WATER SHORTAGE  
 


WHEREAS, the California State Water Resources Board has issued a directive calling 
for a 20% reduction in statewide water use; and 
 
WHEREAS, the reservoirs in the Russian River system and the flows in the River are 
low and projections indicate that conditions will deteriorate further later in the summer 
and fall of 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the District’s and all regional water purveyors’ interest that a 
cooperative effort be developed to address the water shortage situation in the Russian 
River system and statewide; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District adopted the 2010 Urban Water Conservation Plan (the "Plan") 
by Resolution 11-25 on October 6, 2011, which includes a water shortage contingency 
element: and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Plan's voluntary and mandatory rationing stages may be triggered by a 
water supply shortage; and  
 
WHEREAS, the direction from the California State Water Resources Board indicates a 
water supply shortage exists thereby triggering the rationing stage provisions of the 
Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Plan has a three stage response plan and provides that Stage I 
voluntary rationing should be declared when the conservation goal target is between 15-
25%; and 
 
WHEREAS, Stage I voluntary conservation by District customers may be achieved by 
adjustment to their interior or exterior water use, but still requires concerted effort by 
District staff; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Plan contains programs and activities that will help the District and its 
customers achieve a conservation target of up to 20% based on the 2011-13 average  
usage; and  
 
WHEREAS, attached as Exhibit A is a list of the programs and activities that will be 
undertaken by the District to assist its customers in achieving water savings under the 
voluntary Stage I conservation program.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District declares the implementation of Stage I of the District’s 2010 
Urban Water Conservation Plan and directs staff to begin implementation the programs 
and activities listed in Exhibit A with a goal of decreasing water production by 20%. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution 
duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a 
meeting held on July 3, 2014, by the following vote. 
 
 
 







Resolution 14-13, Stage I Water Shortage  2 
July 3, 2014 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Richard Holmer 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Resolution 14-13, Stage I Water Shortage  3 
July 3, 2014 
 
 


Exhibit A 
Resolution 14-13 


Sweetwater Springs Water District Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
Stage I Water Shortage 


July 3, 2014 
 


Reduction Target is 15-25%.  According to 2010 Urban Water Management Plan, this is 
Stage 1 of the Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
Triggering Mechanism is State Board Order directing a 20% water use reduction by all 
water agencies statewide. 
 
The approach/strategy is voluntary conservation whereby District customers are 
encouraged and offered resources to use water wisely, and to search for and fix leaks 
on their property.  The District will continue with its capital projects aimed at reducing 
system losses, pay attention to water wasting in the District, fix surfacing leaks as 
quickly as possible, and look for other opportunities to reduce system losses. 


 
Plan Elements:  


 Public Education/Information 
o Work with SCWA and other water providers in the region for coordinated 


message 
o Information on website 
o Mailer in May 
o Home Water Audits – self and assisted: 


▪  Instructions on meter reading. 
▪  Check for leaks inside and outside. 
▪  Evaluate all water uses in your facility or home.  
▪  Provide information on rebates, incentive programs, and water 
conservation strategies for residents/businesses. 


o Office Display with handouts – rebates, low flow showerheads, faucet 
aerators 


o Water Wise Gardening  
o Media Spots – press releases, PSA’s done on a regional basis? 
o Connect with Statewide effort 


 Waste of Water Prohibited, staff will be alerted to be on the lookout for wastage 
of water. 


 Rate incentives – rates have financial incentive to reduce water use (steep 
incline to tiered rates). 


 Capital Improvement Program – 2015 CIP is replacing water distribution mains 
as part of program to reduce system losses and is starting in July.   


 District staff fix reported and found leaks on a priority basis and continue to 
implement the District effort to decrease water losses. 


  
 


 







Resolution 14-13 (Alternative) 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


REQUESTING CUSTOMERS REDUCE WATER USE BY 20%  
 


WHEREAS, the California State Water Resources Board has issued a directive calling 
for a 20% reduction in statewide water use; and 
 
WHEREAS, the reservoirs in the Russian River system and the flows in the River are 
low and projections indicate that conditions will deteriorate further later in the summer 
and fall of 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the District’s and all regional water purveyors’ interest that a 
cooperative effort be developed to address the water shortage situation in the Russian 
River system and statewide; and  
 
WHEREAS, attached as Exhibit A is a list of the programs and activities that will be 
undertaken by the District to assist its customers in achieving water savings under the 
voluntary Stage I conservation program.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District affirms that it is the policy of the District to request a 20% 
reduction in customer water use, and directs staff to begin implementation the programs 
and activities listed in Exhibit A with a goal of decreasing water production by 20%. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution 
duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a 
meeting held on July 3, 2014, by the following vote. 
 
 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Richard Holmer 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 
 
 







Resolution 14-13, 20% Water Production Reduction  2 
July 3, 2014 
 
 


Exhibit A 
Resolution 14-13 


Sweetwater Springs Water District Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
20% Water Production Reduction 


July 3, 2014 
 


Reduction Target is 15-25%.  According to 2010 Urban Water Management Plan, this is 
Stage I of the Water Shortage Contingency Plan.  We are using the elements of Stage I 
to develop the 20% reduction.   
 
Triggering Mechanism is State Board Order directing a 20% water use reduction by all 
water agencies statewide. 
 
The approach/strategy is voluntary conservation whereby District customers are 
encouraged and offered resources to use water wisely, and to search for and fix leaks 
on their property.  The District will continue with its capital projects aimed at reducing 
system losses, pay attention to water wasting in the District, fix surfacing leaks as 
quickly as possible, and look for other opportunities to reduce system losses. 


 
Plan Elements:  


 Public Education/Information 
o Work with SCWA and other water providers in the region for coordinated 


message 
o Information on website 
o Mailer in May 
o Home Water Audits – self and assisted: 


▪  Instructions on meter reading. 
▪  Check for leaks inside and outside. 
▪  Evaluate all water uses in your facility or home.  
▪  Provide information on rebates, incentive programs, and water 
conservation strategies for residents/businesses. 


o Office Display with handouts – rebates, low flow showerheads, faucet 
aerators 


o Water Wise Gardening  
o Media Spots – press releases, PSA’s done on a regional basis? 
o Connect with Statewide effort 


 Waste of Water Prohibited, staff will be alerted to be on the lookout for wastage 
of water. 


 Rate incentives – rates have financial incentive to reduce water use (steep 
incline to tiered rates). 


 Capital Improvement Program – 2015 CIP is replacing water distribution mains 
as part of program to reduce system losses and is starting in July.   


 District staff fix reported and found leaks on a priority basis and continue to 
implement the District effort to decrease water losses. 


  
 


 





		Item V-A - Declaration of Stage I Water Shortage

		Item V-A.1 - Res 14-13 - Declaration of Stage I Water Shortage doc

		Item V-A.2 - Res 14-13A - Requesting 20% Reduction






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: July 3, 2014 
  
SUBJECT: USDA BOND REFINANCING ISSUES 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on the status of the United States 
Department of Agriculture (USDA) bond refinancing issues and provide direction to 
staff. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Small, if any   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
We have heard no news regarding this item since the last meeting as of the writing of this report 
on June 26, other than USDA is still considering our proposal.  Nicki Tallman of Brandis Tallman 
calls approximately every two weeks and gets the same “we’re considering this” response.  
Below is what we wrote two months ago: 
 
In March the District was informed that USDA had issues with the partial refunding of USDA 
bonds that was executed in September 2013 by the District with concurrence of USDA staff 
involved at the time.  The main issue appears to be that the USDA accounting or payment 
system cannot accept interest only payments which is how the partial refunding was done.  The 
partial refunding was necessary because the private placement bond had a maximum of 20 
years; USDA bonds outstanding after that were left in place and interest only for the period of 
time that principal was due was included in the refinancing.  Apparently, that is now 
unacceptable  to USDA.   
 
After an exchange of letters and emails, we have learned that USDA staff have been directed to 
fix this situation in a way that best suits all parties.  The District’s placement agent, Brandis 
Tallman, has presented a proposal to USDA that would have the District paying $1,000 in 
principal annually for the next 19 years until the full principal amounts on the bonds are 
required.  This would have a minor impact on District finances and would actually have a net 
present value benefit to the District in terms of the later principal and interest payments being 
reduced.     








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: July 3, 2014 
  
SUBJECT: ADJACENT PROPERTY FOR SALE 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on the for-sale status of the property 
adjacent to the current District office and provide direction to staff. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
We learned this week that the property was purchased by the neighbor on the other side.  I 
have not had a chance to talk with him about his plans; I intend to do so prior to the July 
meeting.   
 
      








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: July 3, 2014 
  
SUBJECT: CHANGE IN MONTE RIO TREATMENT PLANT CHLORINATION SYSTEM 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on staff’s investigations into changing the 
chlorination system at the Monte Rio Treatment Plant and provide direction to staff. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
At the June meeting we presented information on changing the chlorination system at the Monte 
Rio Treatment Plant from Mioxx chlorine generation which gets chlorine from the electrolysis of 
salt (sodium chloride) to Trichlor Feeders which use trichloroisocyanuric acid to generate 
chlorine and, as a result of the process, adds cyanuric acid into the treated drinking water.  The 
Board wanted more information on the health impacts of cyanuric acid, if any, what 
investigations have been made into the health impacts, and other related questions.   
 
I have talked with staff at the California Department of Health Services regarding the toxicity of 
cyanuric acid and that person stated that cyanuric acid in the amounts that would be added to 
the Monte Rio water supply is not toxic.  It does not bioaccumulate in the body (passes 
through), does not cause birth defects, is not a mutagen and is not carcinogenic in any tests 
done.  He added that it’s been used in the swimming pool industries for years with no health 
issues reported.   
 
Attached with this report is a list of communities using the Trichlor feeder.  It’s a fairly short list. 
 
This is a fairly short report because of the press of time; we can do more research if additional 
information is needed.   
 







Phone:  530-677-3671 


Fax:  530-677-3672 
E-mail:  info@ardenindustries.com  


Web site:      ardenindustries.com 
 


INDUSTRIES 
Innovators in Water Treatment Technology 


SOME CUSTOMERS USING TRICHLOR 
 


1.   Mr. Lorenzo Martinez -Water Production Super. II 
CITY OF LAS CRUCES  
P.O. Box 20000 
Las Cruces, NM  88004 
575/642-8312  Cell 
lm@las-cruces.org  e-mail 
Use:  approximately 9 years (2005) 
 
3.    Mr. John Anderson 
ASPEN CONSOLIDATED SANITATION DISTRICT 
400 Service Center Drive 
Aspen, CO  81611 
jhanderson@aspensan.com (must contact via e-mail) 
Use: approximately 6 years 
 


 


4720 Fawn Street 


Shingle Springs 


California 


95682 


2. Mr. John Bennett 
LA PAZ COUNTY PARKS DEPARTMENT 
7350 Riverside Drive 
Parker, AZ  85344 
928/677-2069  Phone 
parks@co.la-paz.az.us   e-mail 
Use:  approximately 2 years 


4. Mr. Jim Albu, PE 
BUCKSKIN ARTISTS C.W.D. 
13940 E. Geronimo Road 
Scottsdale, AZ  85259 
602/797-4614  Phone 
jalbu@cox.net   e-mail 
Use:  approximately 6 years 


5. Mr. Todd Heidrick –Water Superintendent 
6. Mr. Jesse Cain - Public Utilities Manager 
CITY OF COLUSA 
425 Webster Street 
Colusa, CA  95932 
Jesse’s cell 530-682-2933   
Todd’s cell:  530-682-9361 
Use:  approximately 4 years 


7.  Mr. Anthony Stromer 
 BUENA VISTA CORRECTIONAL FACILITY 
15125 Highway 285 
Buena Vista, CO  81211 
719-395-2404 x 3410 
Use:  approximately 4 years 


8.   Mr. Jim Aguirre 


CAMP ROBERTS SUPPLY/SERVICES 
CALIFORNIA STATE MILITARY DEPT. 
ARMY NATIONAL GUARD 
BOX 58, BUILDING 3022 
CAMP ROBERTS, CA  93451-5000 
(805) 602-8757 cell 
Use:  approximately  4 years 


9.  Mr. Parry Salsi 
ROLLING HILLS CASINO 
2655 Barham Avenue 
Corning, CA  96021 
530-528-3577 
Use:  approximately 3 years 


10.  Mr. Laken Eoff  702-249-6135 cell 
11.  Mr. Kurt Wright 702-278-5319 cell 
LAKE MEAD NATIONAL RECREATION AREA 
UNITED STATES  NATIONAL PARK SERVICE 
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE WAREHOUSE 
601 Nevada Way 
Boulder City, NV  89005 
Use:  approximately 3 years 


12.  Mr. Tony Gutsch  707-588-3300  
CITY OF ROHNERT PARK 
Department of Public Works 
600 Enterprise Drive 
Rohnert Park, CA 94928 
Use:  approximately 1 year 
 


13.  Mr. Gil Hermosillo 661-510-1097  
VALENCIA WATER COMPANY 
24631 Avenue Rockerfeller 
Valencia, CA 91355 
Use:  approximately 1 year 
 







Review of the Toxicity of Cyanuric Acid 
 


Occidental Chemical Corporation 
October 28, 2013 


 
Introduction 
 
Trichloroisocyanuric acid (“trichlor”) is a solid chlorine donor which is approved for continuous 
(non-emergency) use in drinking water.  Trichlor tablets are sold for use in treating drinking water 
by Occidental Chemical Corporation under the brand name ACL® 90 Disinfecting Tablets.  Trichlor 
has been used to treat swimming pool water since the early 1960’s.  Occidental Chemical 
Corporation has been a leading manufacturer of trichlor since 1993, when it purchased the 
chlorinated isocyanurates business from Monsanto Company, and has extensive experience in the 
manufacture, storage and use of trichlor.  Additional product information is available at:  
http://www.oxy.com/OurBusinesses/Chemicals/Products/Pages/ACLandSodiumChlorite.aspx. 
 
It is important to insure that use of trichlor is safe.  Available chlorine is the toxic part of the trichlor 
molecule, but trichlor has the same toxicological effect as the same amount of free chlorine from 
any other source of available chlorine.  Ingestion of water treated with low levels of trichlor will 
also lead to ingestion of small amounts of cyanuric acid. 
 
At normal drinking water concentrations, virtually all of the available chlorine in a trichlor solution 
is rapidly reduced to chloride by reducing agents in human saliva and stomach fluid.  The only 
product remaining after ingestion is cyanuric acid.  Since cyanuric acid is the stable reaction 
product, its toxicity is of interest and is reviewed in this document. 
 
Cyanuric acid is also known as isocyanuric acid, trihydroxy-s-triazine, s-triazinetrione, or CYA.  Its 
structure is shown below.  Regulatory agencies and the scientific literature generally use the 
triazinetrione nomenclature, while cyanuric acid is preferred in commerce.  In aqueous solution, 
cyanuric acid actually exists in two isomers, which are shown below.  Trichlor is based on the 
structure on the right, with the three H-atoms replaced by three chlorine atoms. 
 


Chemical Structure of Cyanuric Acid 


 
 


Chemical Structure of Trichloroisocyanuric Acid 


 


 1



http://www.oxy.com/OurBusinesses/Chemicals/Products/Pages/ACLandSodiumChlorite.aspx





Toxicity Data for Cyanuric Acid 
 
Trichlor produces hypochlorous acid (HOCl) and cyanuric acid when dissolved in water.  HOCl is 
rapidly destroyed in the stomach, so the only persistent product from trichlor is cyanuric acid. 
 
Despite the similarity of names, cyanuric acid (C3N3O3H3) has absolutely NO chemical relationship 
to cyanide (CN-).  This is obvious from the chemical structure.  Cyanuric acid is made by the 
pyrolysis of urea.  Cyanide is not used in or formed as a by-product of the manufacture of cyanuric 
acid.  Furthermore, cyanide is not a degradation product of cyanuric acid or trichlor.  In fact, 
cyanide is rapidly destroyed by reaction with the available chlorine in trichlor. 
 
The toxicity of cyanuric acid has been extensively tested due to the use of trichlor in swimming 
pools.  The toxicity studies on cyanuric acid, summarized in Table 1, show that: 


 Cyanuric acid is practically nontoxic.   
 Cyanuric acid does not bioaccumulate. 
 Cyanuric acid is not fetotoxic (toxic to fetuses) or teratogenic (causes birth defects) 
 Cyanuric acid is not mutagenic or carcinogenic. 
 Cyanuric acid is not metabolized in the body, therefore no metabolites need to be 


considered.   
 At low doses, cyanuric acid is completely absorbed and then rapidly passed from the body 


unchanged in the urine.  At higher doses, it is incompletely absorbed, passes through the GI 
tract unchanged and is eliminated in feces as well. 


 If fed at very high concentrations (> 2000 ppm), it can precipitate in the kidneys causing 
kidney blockage.  This does not occur at concentrations well under the solubility limit of 
2000 ppm. 
 


The major adverse effect observed in the toxicity studies is the formation of precipitates in the 
urinary tract of male rats when fed at high dose rates, leading to kidney failure.  Precipitates form 
when cyanuric acid's solubility limit in urine is exceeded.  This effect is observed to much greater 
extent in males rat due to physiological differences between male and female rats; similar effects 
were absent from both male and female mice. 
 
The Acceptable Daily Intake (ADI) can calculated from the lowest No Observed Adverse Effect 
Level (NOEL) reported in the toxicity studies.  Therefore, defining the NOEL is a critical step in 
defining the toxicity of a chemical.  The accepted NOEL for cyanuric acid is 132 mg/kg bw/day in 
male rats, which is from the two-year carcinogenicity study on rats. 
 
The acceptable daily intake is calculated by multiplying the NOEL by the body weight and then 
dividing by a safety factor of 100: 
 ADI (for a 70 kg adult) = 132 mg/kg bw/day x 70 kg / 100 = 92 mg/day 
 ADI (for a 10 kg child) = 132 mg/kg bw/day x 10 kg / 100 = 13 mg/day 
 
These values can be compared to the corresponding values for estimated daily intake, which are  
calculated in the next section. 
 


 2







Table 1 
Summary of Toxicity Studies for Cyanuric Acid 


Type of 
Study 


Species/ 
Strain 


Duration 
of Study 


Results 


oral acute mouse single dose LD50 = 3400 mg/kg bw 
oral acute rat single dose LD50 > 10,000 mg/kg bw 
oral acute rat single dose LD50 = 7700 mg/kg bw 
oral acute rabbit single dose LD50 > 10,000 mg/kg bw 


dermal acute rabbit single dose LD50 > 7940 mg/kg bw 
eye irritation rabbit -- Slight irritation 
eye irritation rabbit 24 hr 500 mg resulted in a mild reaction 
eye irritation rabbit 24 hr 20 mg resulted in a mild reaction 
skin irritation rabbit -- Non-irritating 
repeated dose rat 6 mo Dystrophic changes in kidney at high doses 
repeated dose  guinea pig 6 mo Dystrophic changes in kidney at high doses 
eye irritation rabbit 3 mo Non-irritating 


genotox (Ames) S. typhimurium -- Not mutagenic 
metabolism human 120 min 1-compartment open model elimination kinetics 


repeated dose B6C3F1 mouse 13 wk No effect except for increased water consumption 
repeated dose B6C3F1 mouse 14 wk No adverse effects 
repeated dose mouse 2 yr Not carcinogenic 
repeated dose CD rat 13 wk No compound related effects 
repeated dose Fisher 344 rat 14 wk No adverse effects 
repeated dose Rochester rat 20 wk Renal failure at high doses 
repeated dose rat 6 mo Dystrophic changes in kidney at high doses 
repeated dose CD rat 2 yr Not carcinogenic 


Renal precipitate at high doses in males 
NOEL = 132 mg/kg bw (males) 


repeated dose guinea pig 6 mo Dystrophic changes in kidney at high doses 
repeated dose beagle dog 6 mo No adverse effects at 0.8% in diet 
repeated dose beagle dog 2 yr Adverse effects on kidney at 8% in diet 
skin irritation rabbit 3 mo No adverse effects up to 8% solution 
eye irritation rabbit 3 mo Non-irritating up to 8% solution 
eye irritation rabbit 3 mo Non-irritating up to 6.8% solution 


genotox (Ames) S. typhimurium  -- Not mutagenic 
genotox hamster ovaries -- Not mutagenic 
genotox mouse cells -- Not mutagenic 


genotox (bone) S-D rat 46 hr Not mutagenic 
genotox albino mouse single dose No effect on reproduction 


metabolism S-D rat 15 day Minimal metabolism, no bioaccumulation 
metabolism beagle dog 15 day Minimal metabolism, no bioaccumulation 
teratology rabbit 13 day Not teratogenic 
teratology CD rat 10 day Not teratogenic 


reproduction CD rat 3 generation No maternal or teratogenic effects 
Abbreviations: 
LD50 = dose that is lethal to 50% of the tested population 
bw = body weight 


 3







 
Exposure Calculations for Drinking Water Use 
 
This section calculates the estimated daily intake (EDI) of cyanuric acid from use in drinking water 
chlorination.  The EDI is calculated for different doses of available chlorine, assuming that trichlor 
is used as the chlorine source, using the equation below.  The results are given in Table 2.  Note that 
the maximum dose of available chlorine allowed by the EPA is 4 mg/L, so the maximum CYA 
concentration, when using trichlor, is 2.5 mg/L. 
 
 EDI = V x C x 0.62 
 
 where: V = volume of water consumed (L/day), 2 for adult, 1 for child 
  C = the dose of available chlorine used (mg/L as Cl2) 


0.62 = Ratio of mg of cyanuric acid to the mg of available chlorine in trichlor 
 


Table 2 
Estimated Daily Intake of Cyanuric Acid from Treated Drinking Water 


Chlorine dose CYA concentration EDI of cyanuric acid (mg/day) 
(mg/L) (mg/L) Adult   Child  


0.5 0.31 0.62 0.31 
1 0.62 1.2 0.62 
2 1.2 2.5 1.2 
4 2.5 5.0 2.5 


 
In all cases, the estimated daily intake (EDI) is well under the  acceptable daily intake (ADI) from 
the previous section, so this use is considered to be safe.   
 
In fact, the estimated exposure to cyanuric acid from treated drinking is less than the estimated 
exposure from swimming in a pool containing more than 40 mg/L of cyanuric acid.  Cyanuric acid 
has been used as a “stabilizer” in outdoor swimming pools for over 50 years, with no reports of any 
human adverse effects from ingestion of cyanuric acid. 
 
Alternately, the  EDI values can be used to calculate the safety margin using the equation below.  If 
the safety margin is over 100, the use is considered to be safe. 
 
 Safety margin = NOEL x body weight (kg) / EDI 
 


Table 3 
Safety Margin for Cyanuric Acid from Treated Drinking Water 


Chlorine dose CYA concentration Safety Margin for cyanuric acid 
(mg/L) (mg/L) 70 kg Adult   10 kg Child  


0.5 0.31 15,000 4,200 
1 0.62 7,700 2,100 
2 1.2 3,700 1,100 
4 2.5 1,800 520 


 


 4







 5


Table 3 shows that the safety margin for ingestion of cyanuric acid from treated drinking water is at 
least 1,800 for a 70 kg adult and at least 520 for a 10 kg child.  Both are well above the minimum 
acceptable safety margin of 100. 
   
The U.S. EPA extensively reviewed the toxicity studies for cyanuric acid before approving the use 
of trichlor for drinking water in 2001.  The World Health Organization (WHO) has also reviewed 
the use of chlorinated isocyanurates for drinking water and concluded, in 2004, that the use was 
safe. 
 
More details of the toxicity studies for trichlor and cyanuric acid can be found in the following 
references (copies available upon request):   


-- B. Hammond, et al., “A review of toxicology studies on cyanurate and its chlorinated 
derivatives”, Environmental Health Perspectives, 1986, 69, 287-292. 


-- World Health Organization, “Evaluation of certain food additives and contaminants”, 61st Report 
of the Joint FOA/WHO Expert Committee on Food Additives, WHO Technical Report Series 922, 
123-127 (2004). 


-- Robust summaries on trichlor and cyanuric acid submitted to the EPA’s High Production Volume 
Challenge Program in 2004:  http://www.epa.gov/chemrtk/pubs/summaries/tricltrz/c14659tc.htm. 
 
Conclusions 
 
The following conclusions summarize the results of the toxicity studies on cyanuric acid: 
 
 Cyanuric acid is essentially non-toxic (NOEL = 132 mg/kg bw/day) and shows no adverse 


human health effects at concentrations well below the solubility limit. 
 
 The estimated intake of cyanuric acid for drinking water use is well below the maximum 


acceptable intake. 
 
 The safety margins for use of trichlor in drinking water are at least 1,800 for a 70 kg (154 


pound) adult and at least 520 for a 10 kg (22 pound) child. 
 
 The presence of less than 3 ppm of cyanuric acid in drinking water due to treatment of the water 


with trichlor is not a health concern. 
 
 
Prepared by Thomas C. Kuechler, Ph.D. 
ACL® Technical Service 
Occidental Chemical Corporation 
tom_kuechler@oxy.com 



http://www.epa.gov/chemrtk/pubs/summaries/tricltrz/c14659tc.htm



		Item V-D - Change in Monte Rio Treatment Plant Chlorination System

		Item V-D.1 TriChlor Feeder References 3-17-14 with length of usage

		Item V-D.2 TriChlor Toxicity Review OxyChem






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: July 3, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE 2013 - 2014 ANNUAL REVIEW 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a staff presentation regarding the 2014 Annual 
Review. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none   


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District does an annual review each year at about this time of the year.  Last year 
we changed the annual review format attempting to make it more readable, relevant, 
and practical to maintain.  This is our second iteration using the new format and, as 
always it is still a work in progress and comments and suggestions are welcome.  
Periodic review of District activities is a good check on what we are doing and with 
Board concurrence, we will continue the practice.     
 







Exhibit A: Sweetwater Springs Water District Annual 
Review, Fiscal Year 2013-2014 


 
The annual review is a look back of the achievements of the 
past fiscal year and a look forward to what we are expecting 
for the coming fiscal year.   
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide 
its customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and 
cost-effective manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the 
community and environment.  The District provides water distribution and 
maintenance services to five townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO 
ENSURE EFFECTIVE UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
FY 2014 Achievements:   


 Fourth year that 3% increase to Base Rate and Water Usage Charges 
was approved; Second Year of 3% increase to Capital Debt Reduction 
Charge.   


 20 Years of USDA Bonds Refinanced; $45,000 annual savings; USDA is 
questioning result which may reduce annual savings. 


 Reserve Policy met by FY 2014 Budget.   
 
FY 2015 Projections: 


 Investigate/monitor need for rate increase in May 2015, effective July 
2015.  District should be close to $500,000 target for CIP funding.  


 Examine financial planning model to ensure it is meeting current 
financial planning needs; revise where appropriate.   


 Meet Reserve Policy with FY 2015 Budget.   
 


GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE 
WATER WITH FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, 
MANAGED AND MAINTAINED TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
FY 2014 Achievements: 


 Compliance with California Department of Public Health (DPH) 
regulations achieved.  Annual report submitted according to schedule.   


 2014 CIP (Hidden Valley Road and Guernewood Lane) completed; NOC 
in June 2014. 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Annual Review  
Fiscal Year 2013-2014  2 
 


 Mill Street Emergency Project completed in November 2013. 
 2015 CIP (Old Monte Rio Road) award of contract in June 2014.   
 Review of 2014-2019 CIP done in November/December 2013 with no 


changes.  
 Total Leaks for calendar year 2013 at 142 (target was 175) . 
 System leakage at 26% (May 2014) (target was 24%). 


 
FY 2015 Projections: 
 


 FY 2016 CIP (Canyon One) in design for construction in summer/fall of 
2015. Award of contract in May/June 2015.   


 Total leaks for calendar year 2013 at 120. 
 System leakage at 23%.  Look for more action than words on this 


issue.   
 Investigate, possibly implement mapping of District facilities.   


 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS 
FOR ALL REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
FY 2014 Achievements:   
 


 Emergency Action Plan was reviewed and updated in October 2013.     
 Attended 2013 Flood Preparation meeting in October 2013.   


 
FY 2015 Projections: 
 


 Update of Emergency Action Plan in October 2014. 
 Participate in County Emergency Operations communications/meetings 


in 2014.    
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
FY 2014 Achievements: 
 


 Continued low turnover in overall staff indicating healthy workplace.   
 Field staff oversight of 2014 CIP. 
 47 in-house projects totaling 1567 man-hours.   
 Rotating Water Treatment Operator duties appears to be working very 


well.   
 Pending retirement of one Maintenance Worker (Walter Hall). 


  
FY 2015 Projections: 
 


 Continue staff training efforts. 
 Oversee completion of 2015 CIP construction, design of 2016 CIP. 
 Continue focus on in-house projects. 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Annual Review  
Fiscal Year 2013-2014  3 
 


 Hire new Maintenance Worker. 
 Participate in more webinars and workshops. 


 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, 
INFORMATION AND EDUCATION 
 
FY 2014 Achievements: 
 


 Meeting summary sent to local media on monthly basis.   
 Website updated on at least monthly basis. 
 Continued display in lobby that shows examples of pipes that are being 


replaced by capital projects – good public response to this.   
 
FY 2015 Projections: 
 


 Continue meeting summary.   
 Look for opportunities to provide community leadership/participation 


on water-related issues.   
 Continue to look for ways to make website more useful. 
 Participate in statewide and regional drought responses, if it continues.   


 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND 
INFORMATION 
 
FY 2014 Achievements: 
 


 Policy updates on purchasing and conflict of interest completed. 
 Website section for Board members begun; needs refinement. 
 Attended Successor Agency Oversight Committee meetings. 
 Attended CSDA General Manager Leadership Summit in June.  


 
FY 2015 Projections: 
 


 Review sections of Policies and Procedures for revision. 
 Evaluate facility tour opportunities. 
 Refine Board Member website section; put into use.   


 





		Item V-E - 2014 Annual Review

		Meeting Date: July 3, 2014 



		Item V-E.1 - Ex A. 2014 Annual Review






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: July 3, 2014  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets all known 
State and Federal water quality standards.   


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in May was 22,092 units (50.7 AF, 


Guerneville cycle) and production was 71.3 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales and 
production were lower (61.6 AF and 76.8 AF, respectively).  The water lost percentage 
increased a bit to 25.8%, as shown in Figure 1.   


 
3. Leaks:  In May we had 20 total leaks and spent 151 man-hours on them.   Those are 


more leaks and man-hours compared to the prior month and more leaks and man-hours 
compared to May one year ago (12 leaks, 31 man-hours).  Figure 2 shows service and 
main leaks separately with a total breaks line as well.   


 
4. Flow at Hacienda: Figure 3 shows the flow in the Russian River this spring compared to 


last year, 2009 and the 2000-2008 average.  2009 was a similarly dry year, last year had a 
historically dry January through the summer, and the 2000-2008 average was the former 
standard for summer flow but we will likely not see that again.  So far this year flows are 
down, but that’s what we should expect giving reservoir storage and the early start of flow 
reductions this winter – it’s very similar to last year.  My understanding is that the TUC 
only runs until June 29, so flows may get higher then (or the upper basin conditions may 
be such that a critically dry situation exists without a TUC).          


 
5. 2014 CIP/2015 CIP:   The Notice of Completion for the 2014 CIP has been approved and 


recorded.    The construction contract for the 2015 CIP, Old Monte Rio Road, was awarded 
at last month’s meeting, the contract has been executed and we expect the contractor, 
Piazza Construction, to start work the week of July 7.             


 
6. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:   My understanding is that SCWA got 75% of its 


requested grant.  That may mean we will be adding $18,000 to the direct install program.  
No toilet rebates were approved in June.  The current Direct Install Program accounting 
numbers are as follows: 31 customers have had 49 direct install toilet installations 
completed, 3 customers have not acted after being notified they are approved for 
installation and 11 previously approved customers are on a wait list.                    


 







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 5 
July 3, 2014 
 


7. In-House Construction Projects:  There was one in-house projects reported for June.  
Staff prepared the area around a meter on Old Cazadero Road (Spooners) for a double 
check valve (3.75 hours).   


 
8. Gantt Chart:   The Gantt Chart was revised for the new fiscal year.  Please look at it to see 


if I missed anything.   In July we have milestones for the start of CIP construction (it’s 
happening), office lease renewal (we haven’t heard back from Ferrellgas) and Annual 
Review (on the agenda).     


 


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Averages
Sweetwater Springs Water District Since September 2008 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


Sep-08 Mar-09 Sep-09 Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12 Sep-12 Mar-13 Sep-13 Mar-14


S
al


es
 a


n
d


 P
ro


d
u


ct
io


n
 (


A
F


)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


D
if


fe
re


n
ce


 (
%


)


Sales


Production


%Difference







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 5 
July 3, 2014 
 
 


 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline Breaks 
Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
08


Jan-
09


May-
09


Sep-
09


Jan-
10


May-
10


Sep-
10


Jan-
11


May-
11


Sep-
11


Jan-
12


May-
12


Sep-
12


Jan-
13


May-
13


Sep-
13


Jan-
14


May-
14


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks


 
Figure 3.  Russian River Summer Flow at Hacienda Bridge, 2014 Compared to Earlier Years 


and the 2000-2008 Average, Updated June 25, 2014


0


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


800


1-
Apr


8-
Apr


15
-A


pr


22
-A


pr


29
-A


pr


6-
M


ay


13
-M


ay


20
-M


ay


27
-M


ay


3-
Ju


n


10
-J


un


17
-J


un


24
-J


un
1-


Ju
l


8-
Ju


l


15
-J


ul


22
-J


ul


29
-J


ul


5-
Aug


12
-A


ug


19
-A


ug


26
-A


ug


2-
Sep


9-
Sep


16
-S


ep


23
-S


ep


30
-S


ep


F
lo


w
 (


cf
s)


2000-08 Avg


2009


2013


2014


Source: USGS 
http://waterdata.usgs.gov/nwis/uv?11467000







 
Jul-13 Aug-13 Sep-13 Oct-13 Jun-14 Jul-14 Aug-14 Sep-14 Oct-14 Nov-14 Dec-14 Jan-15 Feb-15 Mar-15 Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease
2014-15 Budget Preparation


        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP
        2015 CIP Construction Starts
        2016 CIP Design
        2016 CIP Award of Contract
        2016 CIP Construction Starts


Urban Water Management Plan Dec-15


Water Rights SCWA Protest
Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Renewal July-14
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Annual Review


Table 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: July 3, 2014 



